# **Ysgol Aberconwy**



# Policy for Dealing with Persistent and Vexatious Communication

Policy Number: 65 ISSUE NO: 2

THIS POLICY HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE FULL GOVERNING BODY

Signed:

Date: 30/09/25

Review due date: 1/10/28 LT Link: ADH

#### Contents

1. INTRODUCTION	2
2. AIMS OF THE POLICY	
3. STATUTORY/NON-STATUTORY GUIDANCE	
4. DEFINING UNACCEPTATBLE ACTIONS BY CORRESPONDENTS	
4.1 Aggressive or Abusive Behaviour	3
4.2 Unreasonable Demands	
4.3 Unreasonable Persistence	
5. MANAGING UNACCEPTABLE ACTIONS BY CORRESPONDENTS	
6. DECIDING TO RESTRICT CORRESPONDENT CONTACT	
7. APPEALING A DECISION TO RESTRICT CONTACT	6
8. RECORDING AND REVIEWING A DECISION TO RESTRICT CONTACT	
9. SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES	6
Appendix 1 : Model Letters	7
Appendix 2 : parental Code of Conduct	

#### 1. INTRODUCTION

The School/Governing Body is committed to serving all correspondents impartially and to providing a high quality service to those who communicate with us. Communication under this policy includes communication by: face to face meetings, written correspondence (including emails and messages via the 'school gateway app' and by telephone.

The Headteacher and staff deal with specific correspondence and/or complaints as part of their day-to-day management of the school and, where appropriate, in accordance with the School's Complaints Policy which can be found on the school website.

The majority of correspondence and/or complaints are handled in an informal manner and are resolved quickly, sensitively and to the satisfaction of the correspondent. Our school is committed to promoting positive relationships with all members of the School community, and it welcomes the opportunity to address and resolve issues that may arise.

However, there are a small number of members of the public who act in an unreasonable or unacceptable manner when contacting staff in the School/the Governing Body and/or when raising and/or pursuing concerns.

In some cases, through the frequency and nature of their contact with the School/Governing Body, they can hinder the consideration of their own or other people's service requirements. In some instances the sheer number or nature of their contacts lead them to be considered as 'persistent' or 'vexatious' in their dealings with the School/Governing Body.

In these exceptional cases, where the nature of the contact, or the action of the correspondent is unreasonable or unacceptable, the School/Governing Body reserves the right to take action to manage contact in order to protect the interest of staff, the School and the wider public it serves.

In taking this action, the School/Governing Body will ensure that other members of the public or the school staff do not suffer any detriment from correspondents acting unreasonably. However, in doing so it will still enable the correspondent deemed an 'unreasonable correspondent' to have any legitimate concerns addressed.

#### 2. AIMS OF THE POLICY

This policy aims to:

- Uphold the standards of courtesy and reasonableness that should characterise all communication between the School/Governing Body and its stakeholders/members of the public;
- Support the wellbeing of children, staff and everyone else who has legitimate interest in the work of the school, including governors and parents;
- Deal fairly, honestly, openly and transparently with those who engage in unreasonably persistent communications and/or unreasonable correspondent behaviour while ensuring that other stakeholders suffer no detriment.

#### 3. STATUTORY/NON-STATUTORY GUIDANCE

The Data Protection Act 2018, Article 12(5), The Freedom of Information Act 2000, Section 14, and the Environment Information Regulations 2004, Reg.12, have provisions which deal with the concept of excessive, persistent and/or vexatious requesters, and authorise a reduced level of compliance

to such requests. These statutory provisions have a separate system for appeals, which does not include the School's complaints procedure.

#### 4. DEFINING UNACCEPTATBLE ACTIONS BY CORRESPONDENTS

Some people may act out of character in times of trouble or distress. The School/Governing Body acknowledge that there may have been upsetting or distressing circumstances leading up to the contact.

The School/Governing Body does not view behaviour as unacceptable just because a correspondent is forceful or determined. However, the actions of people who are angry, demanding or persistent may result in unreasonable demands or unacceptable behaviour towards staff. It is these actions that are considered unacceptable and that this policy aims to manage.

Actions which are defined as unacceptable have been grouped under three broad headings: Aggressive or Abusive Behaviour, Unreasonable Demands and Unreasonable Persistence, details of which are listed below. However, particular care must be taken in dealing with correspondents who have a learning disability or mental health problem whose condition may impact on their behaviour or understanding of school processes or decisions. Guidance should be sought from the Local Authority Officers in case of any doubt.

#### 4.1 Aggressive or Abusive Behaviour

- Violence is not restricted to acts of aggression that may result in physical harm. It also includes behaviour or language (whether oral or written) that may cause staff to feel afraid, threatened, offended or abused.
- ii. Examples of behaviours grouped under this heading include: threats, physical violence, personal verbal abuse, unsubstantiated allegations, derogatory remarks and rudeness. It is considered that inflammatory statements and unsubstantiated allegations can be abusive behaviour.
- iii. Staff/governors are to be treated with courtesy and with respect. Violence or abuse towards any member of staff/governor is unacceptable. The anger felt by some correspondents relates to the subject matter of their concerns. However, it is not acceptable when anger escalates into aggression directed towards staff/governors.

#### 4.2 Unreasonable Demands

- i. A correspondent may make what are considered to be unreasonable demands through: the amount of information they seek, the nature and scale of service they expect or the number of approaches they make. What amounts to unreasonable demands will always depend on the circumstances surrounding the behaviour and the seriousness of the issues raised by the correspondent.
- ii. Examples of actions grouped under this heading include: demanding responses within an unreasonable timescale, insisting on seeing or speaking to a particular member of staff/governor, continual phone calls or correspondence, repeatedly changing the substance of the contact or raising unrelated concerns.

iii. These demands are considered unacceptable and unreasonable if they start to impact substantially on the work of the School/Governing Body, such as taking up an excessive amount of staff/governor time to the disadvantage of other correspondents or services.

#### 4.3 Unreasonable Persistence

- i. It is recognised that some people will not, or cannot, accept the outcome of decision of a complaint, request or other investigations into their concerns. They may submit a formal complaint/escalation through the adopted complaints procedures if they feel that the School/Governing Body has not dealt with them in a fair manner. However, if they persist in disagreeing with the action or decision taken, or contact the School/Governing Body persistently about the same issue, this will be deemed unreasonable persistence.
- ii. Also within this category is the refusal to accept the School/Governing Body's decision on a matter of policy or strategy. Objections may be pertinent to the consideration of the matter in the first instance, but persistence in continuing such correspondence or other contact can intrude on the School's normal service delivery, especially when invalid complaints are submitted, and will be deemed to be unreasonable persistence.
- iii. Examples of actions grouped under this heading include: persistent refusal to accept a decision made in relation to a complaint, persistent refusal to accept explanations relating to what can or cannot be done, continuing to pursue the same issue without presenting any new information, seeking to prolong contact by changing the substance of their issue and continually raising new issues and questions whilst the first issue is being addressed.
- iv. The way in which these correspondents approach the School/Governing Body may be entirely reasonable, but it is their persistent behaviour in continuing to do so that is not.
- v. The actions of persistent correspondents are considered to be unacceptable when they take up what is regarded by a Senior Leader or Governing Body as being a disproportionate amount of staff time and resources.

#### 5. MANAGING UNACCEPTABLE ACTIONS BY CORRESPONDENTS

There are relatively few correspondents whose actions are considered to be unacceptable. How these actions are managed depends on their nature and extent.

If it adversely affects the School's/Governing Body's ability to do its work and provide a service to others, the correspondents' contact with the School/Governing Body may need to be restricted in order to manage the unacceptable action. The aim will be to do this in a way, wherever possible, that allows the service provided to the correspondent to continue to be delivered. Contact in person, by telephone, via the School Gateway App, letter or electronically, or by any combination of these may be restricted.

Effort will be made to try to maintain at least one form of contact, or contact through a named individual, usually on the school's leadership team. In extreme situations, the correspondent will be told, in writing, that their name is on a 'no personal contact' list. This means that they must restrict contact with the School/Governing Body to either written communication or through a third party.

The threat or use of physical violence, verbal abuse or harassment towards staff/governors is likely to result in the ending of all direct contact with the correspondent. Incidents will be reported to senior managers and may be reported to the police. This will always be the case if physical violence is used or threatened.

The School/Governing Body will not deal with correspondence that is abusive to staff/governors or contains allegations that lack substantive evidence. When this happens the correspondent will be told that their correspondence is considered offensive, unnecessary and unhelpful. They will be asked to stop communicating in such a manner and the member of staff/governor will state that there will be no response to their correspondence if they do not stop. Future contact may be required to be through a third party.

School staff/governors will end telephone calls/meetings if the correspondent is considered aggressive, abusive or offensive. The staff member/governor involved has the right to make this decision, tell the correspondent that the behaviour is unacceptable and end the call/meeting if the behaviour does not stop.

Where a correspondent repeatedly phones, visits the School, sends irrelevant documents or raises the same issues, the School/Governing Body may decide to:

- only take telephone calls from the correspondent at set times on set days or put an arrangement in place for either a dedicated telephone number or only one member of staff/governor to deal with calls or correspondence from the correspondent in the future;
- require the correspondent to make an appointment to see a named member of staff/governor before visiting the School or that the correspondent contacts the School/Governing Body in writing only;
- return the documents to the correspondent or, in extreme cases, advise the correspondent that further irrelevant documents will be destroyed;
- take other action considered appropriate by the School/Governing Body. However, the correspondent will always be told what action is being taken and why.

Where a correspondent continues to correspond on a wide range of issues or pursues a single issue persistently, and this action is considered excessive, then the correspondent will be told that only a certain number of issues will be considered in a given period, and asked to limit or focus their requests accordingly.

A correspondent's action may also be considered unreasonably persistent if, after making a formal complaint, all internal review mechanisms have been exhausted, and the correspondent continues to dispute the decision relating to their complaint (apart from through the recognised process of the Complaints Policy). The correspondent will be told that no future correspondence will be accepted or discussions undertaken concerning this matter.

Any future contact by the correspondent on this issue must be in writing. Future correspondence is read and filed, but only acknowledged or responded to if the correspondent provides significant new information relating to the complaint.

#### 6. DECIDING TO RESTRICT CORRESPONDENT CONTACT

Staff/governors who directly experience aggressive or abusive behaviour from a correspondent can take immediate action to remove themselves from the situation and bring the interaction to an end and in line with this policy. The staff/governor should record what is happening, making a note of the time, date and what has been said or done. In some severe cases, the school might inform the police if a parent continues their abusive behaviour or is a risk to the health and safety of staff and pupils.

With the exception of such immediate decisions taken at the time of an incident, e.g.in response to aggressive behaviour or threats of violence or abuse, decisions to restrict contact are only taken

after careful consideration of the situation by the Headteacher and/or Chair of Governors.

They should consider whether further action is necessary prior to taking the decision to designate the correspondent as unreasonable or unreasonably persistent, e.g. if no meeting has taken place between the correspondent and the Headteacher and/or Chair of Governors, and provided that nothing is known about the correspondent which would make this unadvisable, an offer of a meeting with the Headteacher and/or Chair of Governors should be considered. Sometimes such meetings can dispel misunderstandings and move matters towards a resolution.

If more than one department/member of staff/governor is being contacted by an unreasonably persistent correspondent, consider:

- setting up a strategy meeting to agree a cross-departmental approach; and
- designating a Single Point of Contact (SPOC) to co-ordinate the School/Governing Body's response(s).

If the correspondent has disabilities, an advocate might be helpful to both parties; consider offering to help the correspondent find an independent one.

Before applying any restrictions, the correspondent should be given a warning that if their actions continue the School/Governing Body may decide to treat them as unreasonably persistent. Wherever possible, the correspondent is to be given the opportunity to modify their behaviour or action before a decision is taken.

The correspondent will be informed in writing why a decision has been made to restrict future contact, the restricted contact arrangements and, if relevant, the length of time that these restrictions will be in place, as well as their right to appeal. A copy of this policy will be enclosed with the letter.

#### 7. APPEALING A DECISION TO RESTRICT CONTACT

A correspondent can appeal a decision to restrict contact or a continuation of restricted contact following a review. A governor who was not involved in the original decision (usually the Vice-Chair of Governors) will consider the appeal.

The nominated governor will advise the correspondent in writing that either the restricted contact arrangements still apply or a different course of action has been agreed.

#### 8. RECORDING AND REVIEWING A DECISION TO RESTRICT CONTACT

Records are kept of all incidents of unacceptable actions by correspondents. Where it is decided to restrict contact, an entry noting this is made in the relevant file and on appropriate computer records.

Where a correspondent has been assessed as persistent, the restriction on contact may be reviewed if, for example, the correspondent subsequently demonstrates a more reasonable approach. Staff/governors would previously have used discretion in recommending restricted contact and discretion should similarly be used in recommending that this status be withdrawn.

#### 9. SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES

A School/Governing body will implement restricted contact if required to do so as part of a court

# Persistent and Vexatious clients

**Ysgol Aberconwy** 

order and/on advice of a partner service (provided the partner service has undertaken due process against an appropriate policy).

Where the School/Governing Body suspects a member of the correspondent's family or a friend are taking up the same issues on behalf of the correspondent, the School/Governing Body reserves the right to include them in the Single Point of Contact

#### **Model letters** Appendix 1

#### Dear parent

I have received a report about your conduct on (enter date and time). [Add summary of the incident and of its effect on staff, students, other parents.]

We believe staff, parents and children are entitled to a safe and protective environment in which to work. Behaviour that will cause harassment, alarm or distress to users of the premises is contrary to the aims of the school.

I must inform you that the school will not tolerate conduct of this nature on its premises and will act to defend its staff and students. I am therefore informing you that should the school staff have any further concerns about your behaviour formal procedures in accordance with our policy on dealing with Persistent and Vexatious Clients will be followed.

Yours sincerely

Headteacher

#### Dear parent

I have received a report about your conduct on (enter date and time). [Add summary of the incident and of its effect on staff, students, other parents.]

We believe staff, parents and children are entitled to a safe and protective environment in which to work. Behaviour that will cause harassment, alarm or distress to users of the premises is contrary to the aims of the school.

I must inform you that the school will not tolerate conduct of this nature on its premises and will act to defend its staff and students.

The Headteacher has already contacted you on \_\_\_\_\_. On the advice of the Headteacher I am therefore informing you that should the school staff have any further concerns about your behaviour you will be asked not to enter the premises and you could be prosecuted under Section 547 of the Education Act 1996. If convicted under this section, you are liable to a fine.

Yours sincerely

Chair of Governors

#### Dear parent

Further to our recent conversation, I am writing to confirm my request that, should you need to make contact with the school, you do so through myself, or a member of the leadership team if I am unavailable.

We are making this request in light of the distress that previous contact with school staff has caused them and specifically in response to [details of incident].

We will of course continue to address any issues that you raise and discuss them with all the necessary staff who are working with, or teaching, your child in school.

We review these circumstances on [date] and contact you to let you know if we feel these arrangements need to continue beyond that date.

In the meantime, by all means let me know if I can be of any further assistance,

Kind regards,

Headteacher

#### Dear parent,

In order to support a peaceful and safe school environment the school cannot tolerate parents, carers and visitors exhibiting behaviour which threatens to interfere with any area of the school or using loud or offensive language when meeting with staff members, or displaying an aggressive temper in the school building.

As such, I am aware of the distress you caused to members of staff at the school during your meeting on [date] and so I am writing to you to request that, should you need to make contact with the school, you do so through myself, or a member of the leadership team if I am unavailable.

We will of course continue to address any issues that you raise and discuss them with all the necessary staff who are working with, or teaching, your children in school.

I would suggest that we review these circumstances at the end of this term but in the meantime, by all means let me know if I can be of any further assistance,

Kind regards,

Headteacher

# **Ysgol Aberconwy**



# **Parental Code of conduct**

THIS CODE HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE FULL GOVERNING BODY

# **Ysgol Aberconwy**

## **Parent Code of conduct**

## **Contents:**

Introduction	Page 3
Purpose and Scope	. Page 3
Guidance	Page 3
Appendix 1: Inappropriate use of Social Network Site	Page 5

#### Introduction

We are very fortunate to have a supportive and friendly parent body. Our parents recognise that educating children is a process that involves partnership between parents, class teachers and the school community. As a partnership, our parents/carers will understand the importance of a good working relationship to equip children with the necessary skills for adulthood. For these reasons we continue to welcome and encourage parents/carers to participate fully in the life of our school.

#### **Purpose and Scope**

The purpose of this code of conduct is to provide a reminder to all parents, carers and visitors to our school about the expected conduct. This is so we can continue to flourish, progress and achieve in an atmosphere of mutual understanding. It can be read in conjunction with our policy on 'Persistent and Vexatious Clients' which gives more details on how we will respond to adults who do not maintain such conduct.

#### Guidance

#### We expect parents, carers and visitors to:

- Respect the caring ethos and values of our school
- Understand that both teachers and parents need to work together for the benefit of their children.
- Demonstrate that all members of the school community should be treated with respect and therefore set a good example in their own speech and behaviour.
- Seek to clarify a child's version of events with the school's view in order to bring about a peaceful solution to any issue.
- Correct own child's behaviour especially in public where it could otherwise lead to conflict, aggressive behaviour or unsafe behaviour.
- Approach the school to help resolve any issues of concern.
- Avoid using staff as threats to admonish children's behaviour.

In order to support a peaceful and safe school environment the school cannot tolerate parents, carers and visitors exhibiting the following:

- Disruptive behaviour which interferes or threatens to interfere with the operation of a classroom, an employee's office, office area or any other area of the school grounds including team matches.
- Using loud/or offensive language, swearing, cursing, using profane language or displaying temper.
- Threatening to inflict actual bodily harm to a member of school staff, Governor, visitor, fellow parent/carer or student regardless of whether or not the behaviour constitutes a criminal offence.
- Damaging or destroying school property.
- Abusive or threatening e-mails or text/voicemail/phone messages or other written communication.
- Defamatory, offensive or derogatory comments regarding the school or any of the students/parent/staff, at the school on Facebook or other social sites. (See Appendix 1). Any concerns you may have about the school must be made through the appropriate channels by speaking to the a member of staff, Headteacher or the Chair of Governors, so they can be dealt with fairly, appropriately and effectively for all concerned.
- The use of physical aggression towards another adult or child.
- Approaching someone else's child in order to discuss or chastise them because of the actions of
  this child towards their own child. (Such an approach to a child may be seen to be an assault on
  that child and may have legal consequences). This includes contact a child via social media, or over
  the phone.
- Smoking and consumption of alcohol or other drugs whilst on school property.
- Dogs being brought on to school premises without permission.
- Insisting on a response to requests in an unreasonable time frame or outside normal school hours.

Should **any** of the above behaviour occur on school premises the school may feel it is necessary to contact the appropriate authorities and if necessary, even ban the offending adult from entering the school grounds.

We trust that parents and carers will assist our school with the implementation of this policy and we thank you for your continuing support of the school.

#### Appendix 1:

#### **Inappropriate use of Social Network Sites**

Social media websites are being used increasingly to fuel campaigns and complaints against schools, Headteachers, school staff, and in some cases other parents/students. The Governors considers the use of social media websites being used in this way as unacceptable and not in the best interests of the children or the whole school community. Any concerns you may have must be made through the appropriate channels by speaking to the class teacher, the Headteacher or the Chair of Governors, so they can be dealt with fairly, appropriately and effectively for all concerned.

In the event that any student or parent/carer of a child/ren being educated in the school is found to be posting libellous or defamatory comments on Facebook or other social network sites, they will be reported to the appropriate 'report abuse' section of the network site. All social network sites have clear rules about the content, which can be posted, on the site and they provide robust mechanisms to report contact or activity which breaches this. The school will also expect that any parent/carer or student removes such comments immediately.

In serious cases the school will also consider its legal options to deal with any such misuse of social networking and other sites. Additionally, and perhaps more importantly is the issue of cyber bullying and the use by one child or a parent to publicly humiliate another by inappropriate social network entry. We will take and deal with this as a serious incident of school bullying. Thankfully such incidents are extremely rare. We would expect that parents would make all persons responsible for collecting children aware of this policy.